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MR. ,fUSTICE MORLAND: Mr. Shields, you kindly suggested thatr would be s,upplied with a transcript. certainty of theevidence anci it certainl-y speeds up the case. on the basisthat arI litigation is now done on an equal footing, is itpossj-ble for your comparatively affluenC clients to supply thedefendants with a copy?

SHIELDS: My Lord

.fUSTICE MORLAND: Good. Thank you. yes, Mr. Shields?

sHrELDs: My Lord, r concluded yesterday with Mr. hiilliams.
,IUSTICE MORLAND: Yes, thank you.

MrrrLAR: My Lord, we, like the claimanLs, have a smarl bundleof documents that we want to use in cross-examination.
,JUSTICE MORLAND: Certainly.

MTTJLAR: r,ike the claimants we t.hought rather than hand them
!p- 9ne by one as we are going aIong, we will give everybod.y aful1 bundle now.

WsrrcE MORLAND: Yes. you are agreeable to that Mr. shields?
SHIELDS: Yes. (Same handed).

MTLLAR: A copy has been given to the craimants. withapologies, the jury will see that. the numbering although
sequenti-a1 is not complete because some documents have beenfilleted out of the bundles because they are duplicates fromthe claimant.'s bundle.

JUSTICE MORLAND: Yes.

MTLTJAR: rt may be that in due course we can find. a way oftabbing everything into the one bundle.

JUsrrcE MORLAND: probably we do not want 6ne bund.le becausethe bundre we have.got is getting a bit heawy and unmanageabreand it geLs very difficuLt when it gets too iur1. rt tends tocome apart.

MR. MTLLAR: My Lord, we will see if we can find a way of tabbingup or numbering it seguentialry so that it makes a rit moresense.

MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: Yes.

MR. MTLIAR: But at the moment, as r say, it has been filletedfrom an original version.

MR. i|USTICE MORLAND: yes.
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I see. But surely as an
would have made a point
Bosnia of looking at the
relative positions.

Mr. IAN WILLfAMS, Recalled

Mr. Williams,', *" some questions
about your recollection and understanding of the camp atTrnopolje. For t.he purposes of t.his parE of the 

".o-rs-examination I want you, his Lordship and t.he jury, t.o have
9pen, as it were, first of all the irery first paie of our
bundle, whi-ch is a plan of t.he area, based on a us satellite
representation of the camp, actually taken on the day of 2nd
AugusL L992. The claimants- have- been good enough to indicate,or, rather, your counsel, that the general purpose in cross-
examination and evidence is to be used as an indication off want you also to have open in front of you, if you can
manage it there, Lab 5 of t.he claimant,s bundle the sixth pageinto the article which you may recalr and the members of the-jury may recal1 has another version of the plan of the campput forward by Mr. Deichmann in his article, which istherefore, naturally, contentious and r make that clear at theoutset. rt is part of the article and therefore part of ourcase. But will you see that it has a number of things on it,including some dotted lines and arrows indicating thit theyare meant to be fences. Now, we know from the map that thajury have looked at, which is at tab 2 in the bundre, that you
approached Trnoporje camp from omarska, which means that you
approached from the sout.hwest. Is that correct? A. We
came from Omarska.

Do you want to l_ook at. tab 2, please? you approached
Trnopolje from the southwest? A. we came- from omarska.r wasn't driving. r' m not sure what route our serbian drivers
took.

experienced foreign reporter you
at the time you were in northern
two camps on the map and seeing their

A. Indeed, I did that. I would have
done that. But at the time there were roads that were closed,
there were roads where there had been mili_tary activity.
r believe we took a direct route to Trnopoiie. The route we
took was not under my control so r cannol siy precisery how we
would have approached that camp

Just as the crow flies. I was not actually asking youprecisely how you approdched iL. rt was from the s6uthwest asthe crow flies? A. That is where omarska riesr f€s.
Now take, please, the satellite p1an, and our case is thatthis is basically as it appears north at the top, south at thebottom, east and west, right and 1eft. you will see in thetop righL hand corner there is an indicator on the diagram.
Are you able to say the orientation of the camp, what it was?A. What what was? Sorry?
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O The orientation of t.he camp. What. was norLh and what was
south? A. Assuming that we approached from the southwest,
f can broadly make that. I can broadly do that. Although
I would point out. that. aL t.he time we had no maps of the camp
at our disposal, both on the trip and afterwards when we came
to do the edj-t, so I apologise if my recol-lections are noL
entirely as per the maP.

O I will be referring therefore to the two roads that we can see
on the plan as the east road and the west road, and they
intersect at the bottom of the south of the p1an. Now if you
couId, please, look again at the page in the artj-c1e with
Mr. Deichmann's plan on it, 3s you will see'there is an
indicaLion on that plan that in the middle of the camp with a
long arrow pointing to it is something ca1Ied the community
building with medical centre and public hal1. If you look at
the bottom left hand photograph, although it is not very good
in black and white, there is said to be a photograph of the
building, a whi-te building in the background which is the
community centre. Do you recalI that building as it is
represented in that photograph, with long windows along the
side? A. ft does the photograph is not clear

MR. ,JUSTICE MORI-,AND: Would it be easier if you had the magazine
itself as you are in the witness box. We have got one coPY,
have we not, somewhere? (Same handed). A. Thank you.

MR. ,JUSTICE MORLAND: The witness has got. the exhibit now.

MR. MILLAR: I am grateful. (To the witness): Do you reca1l that
building? A. There was a white building at the back of
the field in which hundreds of men were imprisoned but there
were so many people in front of it that I couldn't say that
this was it appears to be. There was a white building at
the back beyond the men we filmed but the scene is clearly
very difficult in this phot.ograph than it. was when we
approached that camp.

0 Yesterday in your evidence you were describing in chief your
movements around the camp and you said, and this is my note:
'tI got down the length of the wire fence and round the back of
the administration buildingu. Do you remember saying that?
A. I do remember, y€s.

a Can you just tell me on'the p1an, if you can, which building
you are referring to as the administration building?
A. I cannot te1I you from that plan, no.

a And the plan in the article indicates that right up at the top
of the camp is a second building or complex of buildings which
was formerly a school building and there is a photograph of
that.. It is a two storey building. Do you recall that? Can
we agree that that was the building at the top?
A. I don't recall that building.

BEVERLEI I NT'IUIERI & CO
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You do not. .]ust to complete the picture from your evidence
in chief as to your movements around the camp if we can, we
will be putting to you that the rushes suggest that you went.
up the west side of Lhe area probably through the community
building where you filmed and then back down southwards down
the east. road. Do you reca1I that? A. I thlnk at various
points during our filming we covered each of those places but
it certainly was not done in such a methodical way. As
I explained yesterday, we were at the time being followed and
trying to shake of f Serbian guards. At times I would peel
away and go with my translator to try and get conversations or
1itt1e bits of conversations with those imprisoned behind the
wire. At times my cameraman and producer would go off in a
separate direction again, the idea being to try and dilute the
presence of those watching us, and to try and most effectively
cover, film the camp and talk to those people incarcerated
there.

So the answer is that you cannot agree that summary of your
route round the camp? A. It wasn't as simple as that, no.

Just to see if we can put the size of the camp into some sort
of context, which is difficult to get from the plan or the
rushes, our case is that. the distance from the j-ntersection of
t.he roads to the sout.h up to t.he area north of the school is
about 100 yards. Is that about right? A. I would guess
further. It is difficult to reca11 precisely but I would
guess it would be further than 100 yards.

I am told t.hat a reasonable size football pitch is about. L20
yards, so we are rea11y suggesting that you could put the camp
into a football pitchZ A. There were different. parts of
the camp. It. depends what you are referring to as the camp.

Now I want to turn to the video evidence from the camp on the
day. I want to use mainly the rushes taken by your crew at
Trnopolje but also the C3 rushes and the C3 broadcasts.
Presumably you have had a chance to look at your rushes and
the C3 rushes, the lTN rushes A. I have.

in connection with this case? A. I have.

Did you look at them originally back in ,fanuary 7-997 when you
were deciding whether to issue a writ on the basis of the
article? A. Yes, I'did. At or around that time
I reviewed the material.

Your rushes, according to our calculat.ions, rtn for abou t 22
minutes. This is of the section of the Trnopolje camp.
I think you said yesterday you were there for about an hour.
Is that about right? A. That is about right.
As far as you are aware, are your rushes complete? A. As
far as I am aware, they are complete.
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So the missing or lost rushes, so far as you understand it.,
are a1I lTN rushes? A. I am not aware of that. A11
I know is that my own rushes are complete.

And just so t.hat the jury can recaIl the names, there u/ere,
I think, eight of you in your group in total as you visited
the camp. The Channel 4 team comprised four people, yourself,
Mr. Braddel, Mr. Nicholas and Mr. Hease. Correct? A. And
our Lranslator who had come with us from Belgrade, whose name
was Nina.

I am just at the momenL focusing on the journalists or
technicians that went out from A. Yes, there were
f our i-n that team.

And f TN, t,hree - Penny Marsha11, ,Jeremy Ivin and Michael
Lawrence? A. Yes.

Your counsel told the jury yesterday that we will be hearing
from all of these witnesses as to t.heir recollection of t.he
camp. Is that your understanding? A. ThaL is my
understanding.

In addition, there was an eighth person in the group, a Mr. Ed
Vu11iamy, a reporter from the Guardian? A. That's right.
Now I want to start by looking at your rushes but. could f say
that before we do so, and I ask you questions about them, that
f appreciate that you are noL the cameraman, 1t is not your
eye behind the camera, and that. the two of you part.ed company
at some stages. If there is anything I ask you which you feel
you cannot answer because you are noL the cameraman, please
say so, and we will put the poi-nt. to Mr. Nicholas. I want to
start with the film of your rushes on your arrival at the
camp. Before we run through the first bit can f just. i-ndicate
what is coming up and what f want you to have a look for.
This is your last few seconds in the bus going to Trnopolje.
It is filmed from within the bus and if we trave got the right
section, we will see the blue armoured car up ahead of your
bus turning left, 1zou in a black flak jack-et on the left with
the bus. f want to pause it, if that is possible, when we see
the red van ahead of your bus turning sharp 1eft. So can we
see if we have got that bit available. Can you go back a bit?
It is the last bit of the video. Pause there. Now that red
van up ahead, I think that is the fTN crew in a red van, is it
not? A. I believe so.

And that is you in the black flak jacket there on the left?
A. That's right.

The 1eft side of the bus. We can see that the fTN crew up
ahead, which is preceded by the blue armoured vehicle has
turned sharp 1eft. Correct? A. That is how it appears.

BEI/BRLEY T NI'NNERY & C9
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Now, could you run on, please, operator, and pause at the
moment you got Lo a moment ago where the shot goes from inside
t.he bus to outside. The first shot. Can you just leave the
shot there for a moment? I will come to that shot in a
moment. Presumably you also followed the red bus sharp left.
Do you recaIl t,hat? A. Presumably. This shot may not be
continuous to the other shot.. The cameras are Lurned on and
off aI1 the time. There is no this shot may not follow.
This may have been taken five minutes aft.er the other shot-
This does not folIow that it is a conti-nuous shot. The camera
would have been turned off and then back on again. It is
impossible for me to judge the distance of time between the
shot inside the bus and the shot you are seeing here now, and
from that I cannot judge whether the left turn was 100 metres
from the camp or 10 miles from the camp.

But unlike,Omarska where you have seen from the rushes you
drove up to a gate into the camp, straight up to there, we can
see that you puI1 up alongside this area that we are looking
at - we will see it in a moment - when you get to Trnopolje.
So your arrival at the second camp was very different?
A. It is different.
What I want to put to you, just looking at the p1an, the
satellite plan, is that you arrive at the camp from the south
where the two roads i-ntersect at. the south and turn left into
what I have caIled the west. road and stop right. at the bottom
t.here just below that building that is marked as a block on
t.he bottom of the p1an. Can you agree that? A. I cannot
agree t.hat. I cannot conf irm t.hat. because I cannot conf irm
where the left turn you saw on that. film was taken.

WeII, that is the camp, is j-t. not.?
the camp.

A. That appears to be

And. something like that was your first sighting of the camp?
A. That. was cerLainly my first sighting of the camp but
I cannot sdy, Iooking at your map here, precisely at what
point I was on that when I saw this vision_ through the window
of the bus.

Now have a look at the shot, please. We can see a tal1
building on the 1eft, and to the right of it there is a path
running into the area straight ahead. Do you see that?
A. Yes.

The bottom of the picture. We can see in the middle ground a
Iine of poles running across to the right in the tal1
building, and a line of poles running away up t.o the right.
Do you see that? A. There.are certainly some poles
running along the right. The other are pretty indistinct..
Well, w€ are going to see some close ups of that in some
shots. The poles running up away to the right, w€ say are
running up the side of the east road. Okay? Just to give you
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a reference point.. we will come back to this as we get t.o t.he
closer shots. If you look, you can see more closely in the
nexL couple of shots, you can see a sort of dry area of ground
coming in from the right, from the road on t.he right. Do you
see that? A. This area on the bott.om right hand corner
you are referring to?

Do not worry about it at this stage. We will see it on a
closer shot in a moment. As f say, that i-s your f irst view,
and I think we can see in the background, although it is not
very distinct at this stage, the men in the field?
A. They were pretty distinct to us.

Yes, but not on the photograph very distinct.?
were pretty distinct to us.

A. They

If the video could just be run on for a couple of seconds.
Stop there, please. The camera focuses a bit better. Sti1l
at the side of that ta1l building you can see that there is a
t.ree sprouting out. from the side of the taII building. Do you
see that? We are going to see this building from the other
side of the road. A. A tree where? I am sorry?

Just up where there is a lip around the building, there is a
branch coming out. Do you see that? A. If that is a
branch, yes.

There is what appears to be a road coming in from the right,
from the road at. the right, the dry path. There is something
coming in from the right. Do you see that? A. There is
some pi-ece of tarmac land by the looks of thj-ngs, y€s.

And can you just at this stage look on the ground there is a
group of people sitting behind a pole, a fence pole right in
the middle of the pict.ure in the shade. A. There are
people sitting there, yes.

The video needs to be run on again very shortly to the ot.her
side of the top of ta1l building, because -what is happening
here is that you are j-n a vehicle moving to the left with the
camera, the camera.is stilI moving, and it is movingi across as
you drive past the vehicle to the other side of the tall
building. So you can see if you can stop it just as we get t.o
t.he gap on the other side of the ta1l building. That is it.
Now, there is another gdp there from the building to another
po1e. Do you see that? A. I can see that.
So as we have seen on the right hand side there is a pole,
then a gap and there is a similar gap on the other side of the
tal1 building. If you look through the gap, again we can see
that the men in the field up ahead. Is that right?
A. That's r.ight.

And on t.he left behind the pole we can see a building with a
man standing on a raised entrance to it. you can see the door
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coming out behind him. with grey building blocks around it.Do you see that? A. I can see that.
rf you could just, operator, run on for a second until thefirm goes blurred, we can see that the vehicle keeps moving.st.op there. Thank you very much. Now, your cameraman fromthe next sequence is not stil-l in the vehicle, the camera isnot moving at all. He has got out. r want to come to theseshots in a moment. First of arI, r want to switch, if we can,to the channel 3 rushes, Lo a shot that appears at the end ofthe Channer 3 rushes, which is of the area that we have just
looked at from the other side. (Video played). Can you stopit now, thank you. Now, you see the talr Luilding on the l_eftwith the tree i-n front. of it? That is the same riitaing trrri -

you drove up past when you arrived, is it not?A. r couldn't_identify it as t.hat. rt may well be. rt isvery, very difficult to say.

There is a long-buirding to the.right of it which we say isyhat your vehicle j-s moving behind in the previous shot as itblurs, moving across behinE the tall building ".rJ it is notshooting anything further because it is shoo[ing into the backof that building. Do you recarl that? A. r can,t confirmthat. There were a number of dilapidated buildings. r cannotconfirm which building was which.

rf you look at the fence poles there, ean you see that thereis fencing and wire in between the poIes. Do you see that?A. I can see that.
rf one looks up at the top of thatr fou can see there arestrands of barbed wire running acrosL the po1es. we are goingto see a close up of them Iater, but I think you can begii to-see it now. Do you see that? A. ThaL appears to be thecase, Yes.

Now, what r want. you to do, if you can, is just run on for asecond - do not do it yet - because what the camera does is itpans round or moves round to the right and shoots across thiswhole area in front of that tal1 uuita:_ng,- and, r wonder if wecould stop it at the point that the camera comes round and
shows us that rather strange raised entrance to the buildingthat we saw a.moment ago with the grey building blocks aroundit. r think it moves guite- srowly-roirnd. you-have iust, gonepast it. can you just run back and see if you 

""r, "it"h theuyirli1g! A bit further so rhar we ger a sirot of the whole oftle building here. Now, we can see that the pores and thewire, the barbed wire, at the top, continue to run al_ong thereand behind it $re can see the raised entrance to that uultaingthat we saw from the bottom along the side in the shot to yourright. Do you see that? A. f can see that.
l-O.45 a,m.

with the buildj-ng blocks and the men standing there, and we
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can see a large area of dry ground at the front of the
building, between the road and the building? A. That
appears to be the case, Y€s.

If you would now, please, operate it and just run it. on to the
shot. that you stopped it at before as the camera goes round to
the right. Thank you. Stop it there. You can see a path
into that area, in fact a vehicle driveway, I think, not a
very sophisticated one, from a road. Do you see that?
A. Yes.

If you look you can see there is a gate, ds you would expect,
to al1ow vehicles into that area from the road. Do you see
that? A. I can see that.

We say that that is again the east road on the plan and if we
look at the satellite plan what we are basically looking at
there is the dark shaded area. It is in fact the other way
round on the p1an, light and dark. It is an area of ground
coming in from the east road towards that building in the
middle of the area at the south. Do you see it? That, is what
we say it is. It is a driveway in from the east road to that
big darker building that we saw a moment ago. I am putting
this to you because we will see later on in the rushes they
suggest that you finish your route around the camp coming down
that east road at the side there, southwards, past the area we
have just looked at but coming the other way to the way the
camera has just panned round. So do you recalI t.owards the
end of your visit coming down this road past that gate, past
the area of ground that we have just ]ooked at with the big
barn? A. I have no recollection of that. We certainly
filmed from what you have described as the east road, the
right-hand side of the screen here. I have no recollection of
whether we walked t.he whole distance back up here, as you
suggest.

A11 right. We will see some shot.s of you later on the east
road which may help to jog your memory. But as we looked
along that fence - and we can do it again if you want, going
back to the camera shot and panning round -- there is no
apparent break in that fence with the barbed wire there along
the east side. There is simply the gate which j-s closed.
Do you see that? A. ft appears to be the case.

It may be difficult to see at t.his stage but we are going to
see it closer up in a moment. If you look ahead at the group
of men in the fie1d, if you were in the middle ground in front
of the community building as we look at it the white
building, correct? .A,. Yes.

-- you can see that there are some wheelbarrows lined along
the ground in front of them? A. rt is
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They are too indistinct at the moment. Do you see the sort of
grey blobs there? A.' There is something there. It is
realIy indistinct though.

We will see them in a moment. Now have a look at. the plan
done by Mr. Deichmann in is article. It is evident from those
two pieces of fiIm, we sdy, that Mr. Deichmann's articl-e is
correct to, the extent of showing a barbed wire fence along the
south up the wesL road and a section of barbed wire fence up
the east road past the barn. Would you agree with t.hat?
A. I cannot reca1l the extent of the barbed wire in the
places that you describe.

We are now going to look in a Iitt1e more detail at that
fencing. So if you could take, please, operator the C3 rushes
out and go back to the point, we were at on the Channel 4
rushes. I want you to pause when we are at the right point
fairly swiftly and I will give you a shout when we get there.
Would you just pause there. Now we are there to t.he right of
the tal1 building. Your cameraman has got out of the vehicle
and he is shooting across that area and the barn. Do you see
that? A. Yes.

We can see the path going in to the right of Lhe t.aII
building. If you look up ahead, 3L the top right you will see
three gentlemen in light coloured shirts in a line and the one
on t.he right is holding a camera. Do you see that?
A. Yes.

They have no flak jackets on, I think, unlike your crew and
the ITN crew, all of whom were wearing flak jackets?
A. These are Bosnian/Serb television people a very close
relationship with the authorities. Perhaps they felt they did
not have the need for them.

That, is a Serb film crew present at the time you are there, is
that right? A. That is true.

Again we can see the building in the middle. We have again a
rather bett.er view of the building or the barn, as I am going
to call it, in the middle. We can see the raised entrance
along the side of it which we have looked at a couple of times
and what appears to be some sort of pump or weighing scales,
I think, in front of iL, this side of it, blue weighing
scales? A. . It is very indistinct.
And the path leads on across that large patch of dry worn
ground Lhat we looked at from the side a moment ago. ff you
look down at the foot. of the fence in fact you can see it
on t,his shot. Do you see the left-hand pole? Do you see the
barbed wire running across? It is a bit mangled from the
top of that po1e.
yes.

A. There appears to be something there,

10
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we are going to look at it, as r say, even closer in a minuteas your cameraman fil-ms it, and indeed you used a shot of itas the closing shot in your report. eut focus if you wi1] onthe group of people at the bottom sitting in the sirade.
There is a group of four people in the foreground which goes,r think, l-eft back in an anti-clockwise direction like t[is, aman in a blue shirt, a man -an a ye11ow T-shirt facing --*"nin a white T-shirt, with dark hair and then quite disiinct a
woman with something over her head, a whit.e prot.ective clothof some sort over her head. Do you see that group of fourpeople? A. Yes, f can.

when $re come to see the snippet of the arrival at the camp ofthe rrN broadcast by penny Marshall we will see her going'intothe camp along that path between the gap bet.ween the"po16 andthe building and passing that grgup of people on her iigtrt.
You suggested in your evidence that penny Marshalr,s crew went.up to the barbed wire fence at which Mr. Alic was filmed firsL.out of the group of you that arrived at the camp, is thatcorreet? A. They arrived ahead of us, that is true.
And they took yp a position at the fence and then you
subseguently, because you arrived second, forlowed them to thefence and took up a different position at the fence, is thatright? A. There was no question of following; ihere ,rs aquestion of seeing a large grogp of several hundied poorlytreated emaciated men in a field and there was a question ofget.ting as speedily as possible up to where they riereincarcerated in order to film them and talk to Lhem before ourheavily armed Serb hosts asked us to Ieave.

r follow t.hat but r am just. at the moment. trying to followyour movemenLs from your own evidence and r understood thatthis was non-contentious, indeed you went into it in somedet.ail yesterday, that she was at a particurar location at thebarbed wj-re fence and you went somewhere else along the fence.
r_ think you said tactically to make sure there was a sprit inthe guards who were looking after you? A. I have norecollection of the precise location at which penny and her
crew were at but y€s, we decided that in older to dilute theattention that we were getting and in order to effectivelyfilm and cover what we saw in front of us it was best if ivewent off in separate directions bef,ore our hosts decided. thatthey did not want us there any more.

As I sdy,
crew went
We can see
So would r
area where

we will see on the ITN film of Channel 3 the ITt{
through that gap and up that path towards the fence.in that shot t.hat the Serb ciew did the same.
be right in thinking that when you went into thethe barbed wire fence was you arso took that routein? A. I would guess that is the case. f have no closerecollection of what buildings r passed, what poles r passed.

My focus at that moment was _to get to where r saw thosl peopleincarcerated as speediry and as directly as r could.

11
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Yes.

How did you know at that stage they were incarcerated?
A. Because we could see clearly that they were behind a
fence in the distance, ds we see in these opening pictures.

I see. So you saw some men behind a fence and t.hat was
sufficient to make you presume they were incarcerated?
A. We11, I had just seen some pretty miserable human beings
at Omarska. I suspected that I was about to see some pretty
miserable human beings at. Trnopolje, and what. I saw in the
distance was a field fulI of men, many of them stripped to the
waist, behind what appeared from a distance to be wire. That
is what. I saw-

rndeed. that was a sight that. we know made guite an impression
on you, did it not? A. It would have made guite an
impression on anybody

Indeed after you got back on the Sunday t.hat you got back you
wrote an article in the Sunday Express in which in part - we
are going to look at it later - you describe that scene. Do
you remember? A. I do.

And the impression that it made upon you. But all I want to
try and be clear about at the moment, and it may be that we
cannot take it any further than you have taken it t,hus far,
is that you walked across the area where that Serb film crew
there are walking across to get to the fence? A. I think
it is a reasonable supposition that I took that route.

Thank you. A. As I say, I took the most direct route
I cou1d. My priority was to get to where I saw those men.
I was not real1y paying close attention to what I passed on
the route.

Now could you please run the video on briefly and pause as we
get a close up of the group of four sitting down, or ratherjust after that as the camera comes back and gives us a close
up shot of the wire down through t.he fence. You will know
when you see it. .Tust stop it there. Wait for the fence to
come into focus. You can see the group of four people behind,
the man in the ye1Iow T-shirt,, the man in the blue T-shirt and
the one with the white T-shirt, and it was out of this bit of
the rushes, indeed the next, section we are going to look aE,
that you chose the concluding shot of your film report.
Do you remember that bit of the rushes? A. I do.

The shots of the fence - the close up shots of the fence?
A. On which I finished my report?

o

o

A. I dor 1r€s.

I am of course noL going to suggest that you studied the fence
in detail when you were there but can I just ask you to note
at this stage, because we are going to look at a dlfferent
fence in due course, that this is a chicken wire fence with
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sort of six-sided shapes in itZ It is not a criss-cross wire
fence. Yes? A. Yes.

This j-s the bot.tom part of the fence between the dark brown
poles that we were looking at next to the tall building at the
bottom. It is the bottom part of t.he fence because the camera
is point.ing down. Do you see that? A- Yes.

If you could run on to the next shot and I wj-l1 te1} you what
is Loming. The cameraman does not really seem to move, he
sti1l appears to be at the south of the camp at the point
where you arrived, where the roads converged, but he shoots
through the fence at that point and takes a close up of what
i-s up ahead at the wire, Lhe barbed wire fence where AIic was
filmed and where Lhe men were in the background. Could vire run
on Lo that, please. Stop tLrere, please. That is t.he shot, is
it not, with which you finished your report?
yes.

A. rt, is,

And that is barbed wire? A. That is barbed wire.

That. is the top of the fence we have just been looking at,
right down in the south? A. I cannot say precisely which
bit of the fence it is. It is barbed wire.

A1l right, I will ask you cameraman that. But we can see that
there is an area of ground in the middle as the camera pans
back with two guards in military uniforms and then men in the
field behind the other barbed wire fence at the other side,
correct? Can we run it again. There are the men i-n the
fie1d. Can you see a fence in front of them? A. Yes,
f can.

Then there are armed guards in military fati-gues?
A. There certainly are"

The camera is panning back across an area of ground and
focusing on the barbed wire at the other side? A- Yes-

ThaE is Ehe area of ground across which yo-u walked when you
arrived to geE up to the barbed wire fence where you conducted
your interviews, correcL? A. I believe that would have
been the ground we crossed to get to the barbed wire fence
where we began to interview people, yes.

Now could you move on to the next shot and pause where we will
see what I suggested to you were wheelbarrows along the inside
of the barbed wire fence where the men are sEanding. Now, if
you could just run on a bit further we will get a close up.
there are some wheelbarrows there. If you would just go back,
please, Eo Ehe left. Go right back to the beginning of this
shot, please. Now this is a shot up at, the barbed wire fence
where you did your interview and as we will see in a moment
where eenny Marshall did her interviews? A. Where I did
some of my inLerviews.
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OEFICIAL SEORTEI.}ID T{RITERS

13



1
2
3
4
5
5
7
B

9
10
11
a2
13
L4
15
15
a7
l_8
t9
20

i2L
22
23
24
25
26
27
2B
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
35
37
3B
39

,l 4o
4t
42
43
44
45
46
47
4B
49
50
51
52
53
54
55

At the fence? A. At the fence.

We will see one of them in a moment. with t.he man in the white
T-shirt and the dark beard whom you filmed through the barbed
wire fence. So it appears - we will check this again when he
gives evidence - that your cameraman has now moved forward
across that area and he is up in what we see is the middle
ground there, up at the fence, filming through the fence at
the men in the field? A. I cannot say his precise
position but it would appear that he has moved.

To that sort of location? A.
yes.

To that sort of location,

I want you to look when we run through that shot again to the
men behind the barbed wire. Look, please, if you will at the
men at the Ieft. You can see some of them there already from
a distance behind the fence- Do you see them there, a man in
a white T-shirt with the pot bel1y looking along the fence to
his right, to your lefL as you look at it?
people behind that fence, Yes.

A. There are

What I just want you to do as we run through it is look at the
men in the equivalent position to the left of the screen in
t.he next seguence as we look for it and see if you can see
some men, in particular a man in a purple vest, craning their
necks to try and look up along the fence to see something that
is going on further up the fence. Could you run it through
now. The man on the left here. We wiI] have to run back a
bit.. I beg your pardon, the man in the blue vest looking up
to the 1eft. Can you see that? A. The man in the purple
vest you mean on the far l-eft?

BIue vest, to the left of the guard?
looking at something.

A. Yes, he is

Can you just run the film on a bit from there, please. Do you
see all the men lined up there, comi-ng up to t.he fence, the
group of them turning and looking up the fence to the left?
Did you see that as we went past? I just -want to go through
it again. A. Some do appear to be looking in that
direction, yes.

There is a whole line of them facing up the fence?
A. We11, yes, one or two are looking in that direction,
certainly;

Now can you run the film on just a little bit. Pause there
and take that film out, please. I want to switch now to a
film that we have disclosed and obtained taken from the
Serbian film crew that we saw going into the compound. We saw
them heading up towards the fence. Do not sEart running it
yet. We will see that this fills in a part of the gap in the
evidence left by apparently the missing rushes, the ones that
fTN have lost, showing some of the events at the barbed wire
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fence when Miss Marshall is there doing her interviews.r want initially, because we have not seen it before, to waLchit through in total and then r will come back and ask youquestions. rt runs, r think, about four mj-nutes, fifteen
seconds, oo our calculations- (Video shown) Could you just
pause there and r want you to run it back Lo one shot in the
middl-e of that. c1ip, which j-s where the camera pans round tothe left and shoots along. stop there, please. Run it back.
A11 ri-ght, stop there. That is a vj-ew up along the fence,that shot that we just saw there, correct? A. There is apartial shot panning one way from where the interview was,yes- r would not say up along the fence. The fence was very
extensi-ve.

We can see Miss Marshall in the picture?
Miss Marshall in t.hat picture r 1re s.

A. I could see

when you $/ere in the camp, dt that area of the fence with the
men behind it, did you at any st.age look as t.he camera lookedup along the fence? A. r cannot recall. one of our tasksat the time there were two serbian cameramen there, one inmilitary uniform, one out of military uniform. r am not surewhich of them provided you with his footage but one of ourtasks was to keep clear of those two cameramen because we knewthat people would be very reluctant to speak frankly in frontof a serbian camera. rn fact it might hl.ve been eqiivalent tosigning their deat.h warrant.

r- am just trying to get your understanding of the layout. ofthe fence and the locat.ion of the fence ai the momenl. we
have got a view up along the side of the fence that you wereon. Did you have a look along the fence like that aL. some
stage when you were there? A. WeI1, I would have beenlooking along the fence all the time. r would have beenlooking for likely people to talk to, who were not too
_f 
rightened to Lalk to me. r would have been looking forIike]y things to fil-m or to point out to .James to flrm.

11 . l-5 a. m.

Now you see if you look at Mr. Deichmann,splan, r do not wantyou to deal with the cross and the long arrow saying "positionof the rrN news team and penny Marsha11, and. whele It is onthe p1an, but the camera shot that we have just seen, wherever
she is, is looking past'penny Marshalr and up the inside ofthe fence as it wene in a north western direltionaA. rt's very difficult to say precisery where it is looking.
Th"y are not my pictures. r don,E, know the precise locatioiin which that Serbian cameraman was standing-.

well if we go back and look at it, r do not particurarly wanLto do it, it. is not good guality tape, and wL get this
abundantry on your rushes which we are about to look at. we
can locate the barbed wire that is in shot at this stage bythe building in the background, the community building. tnat
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is right, is it not? There was a barbed wire fence, there
were men on the other side of it, and then in the background
the si-de of that community building? A. That would
cert.ainly seem to be the case.

That was the layout? A.
from those pictures, Yes.

That would seem to be the case

If you look at. those pictures that we have seen and the ones
that we are about t.o look at on your rushes, we can see that.
on the pictures, that it is behind the fence, so when t.he
camera moves round to the left it. is moving along the inside
of the fence to the left in front of the field where the man
is. Correct? A. That appears to be the caser 1r€s.

Now, could we go back to the Channel 4 rushes, please. The
white building in the background in that interview was the
community building? A. That appears to be the community
building, y€s.

I wonder whether you could just. run the film back to before
that interview to the original shot that we get of the
community building. Stop there. A litt1e further please.
Pause there. On the east side of the community building is a
rather strange sort of first floor canopy arrangement. You
can see that? A. Yes.

On the side of the building. That is in fact the side that
fronts on the east road. Correct? A. I can't say for
sure but it is a canopy building, Y€s.

But I want you, please, to bear that in mind, the canopy and
its position on the side of the building as a reference point
for later shots that we see in the rushes. Can you just. run
the film on, please, to the man snagging his T-shirt on a wire
fence, which is the nexL shot. Pause there. Now, we can see
i-n that shot running across the top barbed wire, two strands
of barbed wire, one slightly rustier at the botEom and then
there is some grey newer one at the t.op. We can see
underneath it that six-sided chicken wire Tence that we saw in
the close-up of the fence at the southern side. Do you see
that? A. Yes, I do .

If you look to the right running away from where we are is a
much lower fence. Do you see that, which the blue hand from
the side is reaching over? A. Yes.

He snagged his T-shirt on the top of that fence? A. Yes.

The position that the camera is at there, if I can just take
you to Mr. Deichmann's plan, is at the top riEht where he has
got the barbed wi-re fence on his plan on the easL road, the
top right hand corner, north east corner where there is a 90
degree intersection obviouslY.
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MR- JUSTTCE MORT,AND: could you just sort of hold it up so that wecan all see what you are indicating, Mr. Mil_1ar?

MR. MTLLAR: Yes. we have actually got a bigger one here. Thejury will see that there is refeience to a barn in the middleand the area we have been-talking about. is down here, andthere is barbed wire fencing_suggested around it by an arrow,and the line with long rine dot, long long dot, long line aoi.
MR. ,JUSTICE MORLAND:

dealing withe
It is the top right hand corner you are

MR. MTLLAR: Top right hand corner. so we have got the barbedwire running across the front as the ca*era Ls looking uptowards the east road, and, as Mr. Deichmann would haie it onhis diagram, what we are beginning to see there, what. the manis snagging his T-shirt on, is what he has got as the 1owfence running- along the eastern road. Now, do you rememberbeing up in that corner of an area rrr.ornded bv barbed wire?A. we were filming all along that stretch of birbed wire.
O You were? A. Yes.

Up to that point, north east?
you referring to?

O Let me hold this up and show
Mr. Deichmann,s diagram.

A. Which point agai-n are

you. Go up the east road onA. Yes.

a Along the long 1ine, dot.t.ed 1ine, long: line, dotted line?A. Yes.

O To where it turns 1eft. at 90 degrees. A. Yes.

o rhat corner, what he says is a compound on an enclosure
surrounded by a barbed wire fence, and t.hen he says what. runsnorth east from there along the side of the road i= a Iow wire
mesh fence and that is what we can see in the background?A. Yes, that appears to be where the barbed wire ience meetsthe chicken wire fence. yes

o so that bit of Mr. Deichmann's diagram is correct?A. rnsofar as there is a corner where barbed wire meetschicken wire, y€s

o And that corner to the right of that shot, ds we saw earrier,is the- t,op of the barbed wire fence running .rp ir,. easternroad which had the gate. in- it. _ Do you remembLr? rf you lookat the diagram, the dark shaded area, we saw a gate and barbed.wire fencing along the side of that road.. A: r recarr thegate but I think it is very indistinct from this picture as to' where that wire is going or where it might be teririnated.
o we will go on a bit because we will see it later on. can yourun on a bit, please? Maybe just pause at the.end of it wittr
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1 the white building in the background. Now that, on the
2 rushes, is the first time that we ean locate you, which we do
3 by your voice, I think, on the interview. A. yes.
4
5 O And you were looking through the barbed wire there towards the
5 community building in the background when you were'7 interviewing? A. Yes .

B

9 O If we run on. It is a shot we looked at Stop there,
10 please. Can you just run back a 1ittle bit? The right, the
11 dark po1e.
1,2
13 MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: That is t.he corner post?
t4
L5 MR. MILLAR: That is the corner po1e, y€s, of the barbed wire
15 fencing around the area. (To the witness): Do you see that?
17 A. Yes.
18
19 O So we now complete the picture and we can see the 1ow wire
20 mesh fence running north east along the side of the road?

,'." 23- A. Yes, that is where the 1ow wire fence meets the barbed
22 wi-re fence.
23
24 O This is the point at which the three pieces of fencing - see
25 Mr. Deichmann's diagram - meet, is it not, or1 the road? The
26 two sides of the barbed wire around the area that you are in
27 and the different fence, the 1ow wire fence, running up along
28 the eastern road? A. That seems t.o be where the low wire
29 fence and the barbed wire fence of the prisoners' compound
30 meetsr 1zes.
31
32 MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: Is there no 1ow wire fence, chicken wire
33 fence, running east west as well below Lhe barbed wire?
34
35 MR. MILLAR: There is. You can see it there.
36
37 MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: Yes.
38

,, ,39 MR. MILLAR: But we are going to see this more clearly later on.
" 40 This was why I detaiLed earlier the shape,- the heiagonal shape

4L or the six-sided shape, whatever it is.
42
43 MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: Yes.
44
45 MR. MILLAR: If you look at the darker chicken wire, slightly
46 rusty, below the barbed wire of this fence, it is the shape of
47 the fence that we saw down at the south. The fehce in the
4B background Lhat we are going to see more closely later on, the
49 low fence, is a chris-cross fence and it is a more modern
50 wire. ft is a silvery fence.
51
52 MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: That is running alongside or paraIle1 to the
53 road running from the south to the north?
54
55 MR. MILLAR: Yes.
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MR. ,fUSTICE MORLAND: Should we have a break now? A guarter of an
hour break now.

(Adiourned for a short time)

MR. MfLLAR: (To the wit.ness) : Mr. Will-i-ams, w€ have seen this
shot before of the man snagging his T-shirt on the fence that
we looked at. a moment ago. I just want you and the jury to
note, ds it were, for a reference point that behind t.his thin
man here is a pile of those grey bui-lding blocks. Do you see
that. on the other side of the barbed wire fence? A. ,fust
below the armed Serbian guard, you mean?

O Yes. WelI, whichever way you want to look at. it, it is behind
him. You see the building blocks? A. I can, yes.

O Now if we run on through the - I do not want to do it at t.he
moment - next section, which is your interview of the man with
t.he white T-shirt and the dark beard that we looked at a
momenL ago, part. of which appears in your report, part of that
interview also appeared in Penny Marshall's report, the News
at Ten report. Correct.? A. That's correcL.

O Do you know how that came about, how she came to use that part
of your rushes in her report? A. I can't remember t.he
precise mechanics of it but this was always going 'to be a
joint effort, the way we worked in t.he camps, and we made each
other aware of the material that we had in a broad sense and
were able at some times some instances while we were
editing to view some of each other's material.

O When was that? In Budapest? A. That would have been in
Budapest although I would have alert.ed Penny to the existence
of some of the material I had ahead of arriving in Budapest-

0 Let us look at that in a Iittle more detail. You told us in
Budapest you were each in different editing suites. How does
it work? Do you pop into hers to see her rushes, and she pops
into yours to see your rushes? A. It wouldn't be as
simple as that.. I would -- or we would as- a team have made
partners at Channel 3 aware of what we had and I cannot recall
the precise mechanics of the edit in Budapest. We were
editing close Eogether and at some point during that afternoon
I or members of my team would have made Peinny or members of
her team aware of the material that we had and which we were
putting into our Channel 4 news report.

11.45 a.m.

a So what do you rnean by I'made aware of"? You would have shown
them iu}re 22 minutes of n:.shes that you had got? A. No,
not necessarily. I mean, they might not have wanted to see
the entire rushes but we would have made them aware of what we
were using and what, material we had, and there $rere perhaps
sect,ions of it which they might have wanted to look at.

BEIIBRLAT?M'NIIRITCO
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They might not. have bothered to see the whole rushes. rt is
22 minutes of that fil-m at Trnopolje. Are you saying they didnot see that 22 minutes of rushes? A. we wanted primarily
to work from our own shots, from the shots that each team had
shot within the camps. There was no real need, certainly from
our point of view, to view in its entirety the shots thal
Channel 3 had shot.

At. any rate r had undersLood from your evj-dence yesterday
tel1 me if this is wrong - that the only part of the channel 3
materj-al that you saw was what was on the feed at 5.45, i.e.
the Alic c1ip, that you incorporated into your fi1m. Have
I got that wrong? A. No, that is correct. That is the
onry part of the channel 3 rushes that r saw, or the channel
3 material that I saw. I cannot reca11 precisely what my
colleagues Andy Braddel and James Nicholas would have seen.
'James was probabry more aware of the content of t.he channer
3 material because r believe at some point in Budapest he washelping them out technically to dub some materiar across.
But my team would have been pretty well aware of that
material, although I myself only saw Channel 3 material,
I believe, on the 5.45 feed out of Budapest.

Right, Let me see if I can get t.his right. you only see
what is on the 5.45 feed. The others in your team who aregiving evidence and who r can ask about this, according Loyour understandingT, saw other parts of the rushes of the rrNfilm? A. r cannot remember precisery when or which part
they would have seen but. we worked together very closely as a
team and we wourd have - trwe" in terms of my team - would have
made themselves aware of what the Channel 3 team had, and
certainly Penny made me aware of what she had verbally in our
discussions before we got to Budapest 

"

This may go some way to explaining something that has puzzled
us, which is that on your film report, which we are going to
look at Iater, you also have the section of the interview with
t.he doctor that appears on the rrN rushes as werl as the Alic
shot, do you not? A. That, is right. 

_

And r would have thought, since it was your report - and that
is another section that you are taking from somebody else,s
rushes and incorporating into your broadcast report - that you
would have seen t,he section of the rushes from wuicn that
came, the doctor section of the rushes? Have I got that
wrong? You never saw that? A. r cannot recalr when r sawthat sect.ion, whether it was when we were cutting from it or
whether r was advised about it by Andy. penny mide me aware
of what she had and her conversations with the doctor soon
after we lefL the camps and the existence of the film which
had been smuggled out.

So Andy comes to you and. says at some stage: rrlrve seen "'Oraof their rushes. By the way, they,ve got some film of the
doctor. Maybe Penny's mentioned that to youtr, and you say:

F IrUNIIERY T C!
SEORTEAND NRTTERIT
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"Right. Great. We'Il have a clip of that. We'11 put it in
our repoLt", and you do that without ever seeing the rushes
with that bit of the doctor on? Did you say: ,rThat,s fine.
We'11 do that"? A. No. WhaL happened

You did see some of the rushes? A. I di-d see some of the
rushes on the 5.45 feed out. I cannot recaIl when I saw the
docEor pictures. The way the doctor pictures came to be
incorporated in my report was that Penny made me aware of the
conversations that she had in the medical centre at Trnopolje
camp. She also made me aware of the photographs, the film
that she had been given by the doetor to smuggle out. of the
camp and the video of what I subseguently saw in Budapest.
I believe the first time I saw the rushes of the pictures from
the medical centre was shortly before f incorporated them into
my report. The shots in there are not it is not an
extensive sequence. It did not take long to view them before
incorporating them into my report. I had talked at length
with Penny about what she had found in that medical centre.
Penny is a journalist of great professionalism and i-nt.egrity.
I had no reason to think that they were any different from as
she described them to me.

Right. We may be getting a 1ittle closer to the truth now.
So you saw the 5.45 feed with a bit of Alic on and you did see
some of the rushes, i.e. you saw at least the rushes with the
doctor seguence on, part of which you used in your report., is
that right? A. We1I, that is self-evident because I would
have had t,o have cuL the pictures out. of the rushes tape that
Channel 3 had in order to incorporat.e them into the Channel 4
report..

Right.. So when you saw those bits of the rushes did you go
into her editing suite to have a look at them? A. I
cannot, reca11 where I saw them. I suspect that we probably
brought the tapes or that particular t.ape through to view it
in our edit suite. I cannot recaIl whether Andy or ,James
would have viewed it in more detail ahead of me earlier in
that afternoon.

Right. So the idea is you see the bit on the rushes from
which you might take a section for your broadcast report,
guit.e understandable because you want to see that bit through
and see which is the bit that you want to put. j-n your report,
correct? A. No

That is what you did? A. We}I, not, it is not. What. we
do -- the process of putting a report together is rather more
complicated than that and the process of put,ting t.hese reports
together was more so still because we were so keen to be
cautious in the way that we presented these camps.

f see. A. And. we had talked at some considerable length
about the material which each of us had.
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Yes. A. We were keen as far as possible to use the
mat.erial from our own respective cameramen but we had to some
exLent also work as a team within t.hose camps. Penny was able
to cover certain areas, I was not. We were able to divert and
dilute the Serb guard Presence.

Mr. Wil}iams, I do not want to interrupt you but I am sure we
have got. all Lhose points A. Well, there are very
important points.

I am sure they are but we have got t.hem and you have given
evidence about them a number of times. I was asking you a
very simple guestion. There is a situation where your
colleague has on some of her rushes some film of a doctor that
you may want to use in your broadcast report. You have now
accepted that somewhere, whether in her suite or by the rushes
being brought over to your suiter |ou watched the section of
the rushes with the doctor on. A1I I was putting to you was
and I would have thought it was obvious - the reason why you
want to look at the section of the rushes, having thought to
yourself "I might incorporate a bit of the doctor interview in
my broadcast report", is so that you can see what it shows and
decide which, if any, bits you want to put in your broadcast
report? That must be right, must it not? That is the idea?
A. That is right, Yes.

Thank you. And presumably the same principle would apply to
the Alic clip? You have seen it in a form on the 5.45 feed.
ff you wanL to incorporate some Alic into your broadcast
surely you would make sure that you look at t.he relevant
section of the rushes to select the bit that you want to use
in your report on that same principle, correct? A. The
Alic clip was a different sort of cli-p to the doctor. The
doctor was very much a seguence within his medical cenLre,
which we were using to make the point about the brutality that
had exist.ed and existed within this particular camp.

Did you adopt the same approach with the Alic clip once you
had decided you might want to use it? A. f looked at the

O Did you look at the rushes of the AIic clip? A. I did
look at the rushes. I looked at, the pieEures thaE were being
sent to London, which I believe was a fairly lengthy clip
which incorporated the Alic image. I felt it was a good shot,
an appropriat.e shot and I included it in my coverage of this
particular camp.

It was so good as a shot - you have told us this - so powerful
as an image that you felt you had to take that step of taking
it and using it in your report, correct? A. Because it
was a strongi image which I felt epitomised. what I had seen at
Trnopolje and would be an important addition to the other
powerful images which I was using from Trnopolje camp.
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a And your colleague has got it on a section of her rushes in a
room down Lhe corridor- you are seriously suggesting as aprofessionar t.v. news reporter compiling-a report of this
import.ance that you do not make a point. of lookinq at thatbit, that. image that you are lifting in very briei form on herrushes to see it in context, to see what wai happening withMr. Alic? Are you seriously suggest.ing that? A. I am
suggesting two things: ooe, r cannot recaIl the length of theclip that I looked at and from which I t.ook the Alic and I had
spent an hour looking at. context, looking at the condition ofthe people behind that fence. That was the context.

o But you were not there, were you, when Alic came through the
crowd? You had just seen a film of it? A. I was not
there.

o You are using it as an isolated image because of its power,
are )rou not? A. r am.using it because it i-s a stiongimage. I would not describe it as an isolated image.

O I see. We11, we will see how it was used later in particular
by those who presented the report on channel 4. they used itas an isolated image. But you are suggesting you do not
bother in those circumstances to make a point of seeing thatsection on your colleague's rushes? A. As T have iaid,r cannot recall the length of the clip that r looked at and
from which r took the Alic image. But it was from the same
scene that greeted us in this field, that was the contexL.It was a st.rong image that supported what we had seen and what
we had fert about what was happeni-ng in this particular camp.

You see, there is something odd in this case, is there not,
about the Alic clip r am not suggesting there is anything
underhand or improper about it, it is just the way things hive
worked out which is that we have not got the rushes of thepiece of film that is at the heart. of this case?

!1R. sHrBLDs: My Lord, if that is the case why does he use the
words "there is something odd about this caser?

MR. MILLAR: Because it is odd.
piece of film ---

We have not got the rushes of the

MR. JusrrcE MORT,AND: r have no doubt Mr. Mi1lar will be verycareful not to use cross'-examination as a vehicle for comment.

MR. MTLLAR: r am obliged to youf Lordship. {To the witness):
Are you keen to suggest to the court that you d.id not seethat relevant part of the ITN rushes in order to avoid being
cross-examined about what was on those rushes that we have notgot? A. I am sorry, could you repeat that?

0 If you had seen those rushes r could ask you what was on them,
could I not? A. You could.

BEI'ERLEI F NI'NNERI & CO
OPPICIIIT SEORTENID I{RITERS
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Are you suggesting that you did not see them in order to avoid
quest.ioning about what was on those rushes? A. Certainly
not.

Now can we come back t.o the Channel 4 rushes, please. I now
want to locate you in a shot on the Channel 4 rushes and if we
run on from the point. that we are at. I think we can move
quite quickly through t.hat. interview to the next sequence back
at the east road, where the three fences joined. ,Just pause
there for a second. I Lhink what we can see there is that
location where the three fences join and there are some men
crowding around, I think, if we were to go back and look at
it, because somebody is handing out cigarettes, a guard,
I think. Somebody there at t.he fence has got something, some
cigarettes, I do not know, they are handing out. If you run
on for a bit you will see the camera moves t.o the left through
a shot. of some men at the back who wave at the camera, and it
comes back. Pause there. Do you see the man in the white
vest? A. Yes.

,Just look over his riEht shoulder. There i-s a white shirt
with a flak jacket and there are men up at the fence, that
group of men. We will have to look at this a couple of times.
It. is self-evidently you but you have to look at it because
you only appear briefly behind the man in the white vest.
Would you run on, please. That is you, is it not?
A. That appears to be me, y€s, myself and Andy.

That. is you and Andy, the two gentlemen in the flak jackets.
Okay, pause there. So for t.he f irst t.ime there we can locate
you on the film and you will understand what. I am putting to
you if you look at Mr. Deichmann's diagram. You were up there
at the north-eastern corner of what he has got as the barbed
wire f encing, on t.he inside of the barbed wire f ence. Do you
follow? A. Yes.

Is that correct? A. That seems to be t.he place, yes.

Therefore standing where you are you have behind you the
barbed wire fence running down the road with the gate in it
and running away off to the left the barbed wire fence running
up to the north-west that we saw the long shot of in the
Serbian fi1m, is that right? A. I cannot recall the exact
location but I was certainly at Lhe fence, at the barbed wire
talking to the t,errified man in the white shirt.
You see, something strikes me as odd about this, and I want to
put it to you. You eome to a different camp from Omarska, the
layout of which is obviously different. You have not driven
up to a gate and gone in, as you did in Omarska. You have
gone into this area where there is barbed wire f,encing and you
have seen the men there who you obviously are moved by and you
consider an important story and that you have found them, have
I got that right? A. Which part?
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The last part.. A. I am moved by it, yes.

And you consider it an important. find that they are there
behind t.he barbed wire fence? A. Yes.

And it is a very different. visual set-up and a very different
physical set-up to the one at Trnopolje where everything was
locked away aL Omarska, where everythingi was hidden away
from you? A. That is a case of

Regimented? A. Yes, although I would not agree with your
observation that it was obviously a different sort of camp.
That was not immediately clear when we arrived.

I apologise if I suggested that. I did not mean to suggest
that. I just said in terms of what you were seeing it was
very different? A. Yes.

You were seeing a chaotj-c scene, large numbers of men behind a
barbed wire fence in a fie1d, whereas at omarska you had seen
regimenEed men filing in and out of the canteen, eating food
and being taken back to areas of the carnp you could not see?
A. That is right.

And there you are up in the north-east corner as we have got
it and that barbed wire fencing, on shot, interviewing a group
of those men, I think you were, were you not, behind the
barbed wire fence?

Talking to them?

A. Yes.

A. That is right.a

0 .Tust help me with this. How long have you been at the camp
roughly at that stage? A. This would have been the
opening mj-nutes of the camp. This would have been just about
the first thing we did, t.he first interview we did on camera.

So that would be while Penny Marshall is up at the fence
further up doing her interview? A. I cannot recalI
precisely where Penny was but I guess that she would at that
time have been roughly along that same length of barbed wire.

Do you not at that point say to yourself: "We11, here are.
these men behind barbed wire. Here am f, I have got to them.
What's the layout here?'r Do you not have a look around and
ask yourself what the layout of this camp is and the scene
that you have encountered and the barbed wire? A. No-
No, you ask yourself : rrHo!', long am I going to be allowed to
remain here? How much mat.erial, how many images, how many
conversations to try an ascertain what is happening here am
I going to be able to have before somebody with a gi\]n asks me
to move on or to leave?"

Right. But you were there for an hour in tota1, I think?
A. Around an hour, yes.

BB'IIERLEY I Tft'N!TERY & @
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And as we have agreed, you took a route around the camp that
enabled you to go around it, and we are going to see some
shots later on of you standing interviewing another group of
men over the low mesh fence? A. Yes. I cannot recaIl t.he
precise routing that we took. Sometimes it. was zLg-zagging
because of attempt.s to t.ry and talk Lo people, but certainly
we encircled this enclosure.

And nobody in any of the shots where we see you on t.hese
rushes is pointing a gun at you or asking you to move on?
You seem to be able to conduct your interviews of the men and
do so at some length, as we can see from the rushes?
A. At this point we are able to but you will also recall that
the last instance, the last experJ-ence we had at the Omarska
camp, was of a rather unpleasant confrontat.ion wj-th armed
guards who ushered us out virtually at gunpoint. There were
heavily armed men here at Trnopolje, guards, whom those behind
the wire were very, very frightened of. We had no knowledge,
we could not te11 for one moment how long t.hey would tolerate
us talking to those behind the fence, how long they would
tolerate us remaining at that camp. The experience from the
previous one suggested we might not get very long and so we
wanted to obtain as much evidence as we could before we were
moved on.

ft must have become apparent as the hour wenL on that that was
not what was happening here, that you were not. being ushered
away, you were being allowed to go round the camp. Correct?
A. No, to point.

To a point. A. No, there were people there ushering us,
there were guards, where they were able to, coming and
sLanding over and attempt.ing to listen to conversations.
Certainly I would not have described it as having freedom to
roam around the camp. We were able to move around the camp
but there were guards watching us, there were guards
attempting t.o eavesdrop on conversations we were having all
the t j-me. It. was certainly not by any stretch of the
imaginat.ion a free and easy atmosphere.

So in Lhat shot of you at the fence doing those interviews
behind the man with the white vest, roughly how long did you
spend at that point, doing those interviews? A. I would
guess perhaps five minutes.

Five minutes. A. Five or ten minutes. ft is my best
guess. I cannot recall precisely.

Could you run the film on please? (Pause) Pause there. The
camera, your cameraman, is now -- Iet me just put this to you
on the Deichmann diagram so everyone can understand and see.
If you look on his versi-on of the barbed wj-re fence, the dark
black one, at, the north-west corner, the top right corner,
there is an intersection again with a 1ow mesh fence but of
course we are on the western side now, not the eastern side.
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Yes? A. Yes.

The men behind the 1ow wire fence- A. Yes -O

a rf you look at the shot of the poles t.here you will see a darkpole on the right, like the ones we saw before when we werelooking at the fencing around the southern part, round thebarn. Do you see that? A. yes.

rf you look c1oseIy, and it may be difficult to see it on thisshot but we will see it on a later shot much more c1ear1y, thefenci-ng agai-n is three sections of fence meeting, a corner ofbarbed wire fencing and a mesh fence running ofi north-westfrom it. Do you see that, from that dark pot"e A. Thatis not very distinct, rro. There is certainty a 1ow wire fencemeeting something but it,s not very dist.inct-.
ca1 r just ask you to note something else about this shotwhich is that the 1ow mesh fence is-running over grorrrrd wherethe grass is relatively evenly mown. can you see that? rtig n9t tufting up foliage around the bottom of the fence, orrthe Iow fence. Do you see, where the men,s feet are?A. (Pause) It is not very distinct.
Look at the men's feet and where they are standing, behindthat. Iow mesh fence. A. yes

That is a piece of fieId, is it not? A. Yes.

And the grass is relatively even there. yes? A. rt looksa 1itt1e l-ess even around their feet.
A11 right. Look to the right. to the dark pole and what wesay is the corner of the barbed wire fence. r am sure if youwere a gardener, which I am not, t.his woul-d be moresignificant, if you mow 1awns, but up against that fence theforiage is all grown up high. Do you see that? A. Thatparticular spotr |€s.
rndeed, in every part that we see of that barbed wire fenceand t.he dark rusty.brown pores, and it appears on every one wehave seen, the foliage and girass and weeh-s are grovring uparound the bottom of the fence like that. Do you reiremLerthat about the barbed wire fence? A. r do iot. r do notclosely recall that, no.'

You see, it suggests, does it not, that the barbed wire fencehas been there longer than the rower mesh fence. A. rtmay well have been.

12 . 35 p.m.

rndeed, we will see some shots again of crose-ups of the lowerfence, the mesh fence to the wesiern side, and ie wilr be abreto see, comparing it. wi-th close-ups that we saw earlier of the

AEVBRLETFEONNERY&CO
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barbed wire fence, that it. is newer fencing. fs that. your
recollection? A. It certainly appears to be newer
fencing, yes. Although of course some of the barbed wire
appears quite new a1so. You point.ed out the rust.ing bit you
will recaIl, and the newer part below that-

Could you run the film on a bit, please, Lo a guard with a
If we look at these shots we can see the community building
again in the background. We cannot. see the canopy because we
have come round to the southwest of the community building but.
we can see a canopy but only a bit of it aL a different ang1e.
There is a low wire mesh fence. We can see a bit of the
canopy there. Stop there, please. As we will see when this
runs on, this guard is on the west side and he is walking down
towards that fence that we have just looked at, the mesh fence
on the west side. If you look up in the background you can
see people, possibly men, it is not c1ear, behind a low fence.
Can you see that? A. Yes.

It is not a mesh fence, it is in fact a wrought. iron fence and
we are going to see that in due course in close up a bit more.
Were Lhose people up there part of t.he imprisonmenL t.hat you
have described? A. f can't recal1 where precisely this
shot was taken. It may well be that I wasn't with the
cameraman at the time. I can't reca11 precisely where this
shot was taken.

WelI, 1et me help you. Can you run it on a bit? Stop there.
So that is the mesh fence on the west side on Mr. Deichmann,s
diagram, up towards the communiLy building which is in t.he
background? A. It would appear to ber |€s.
So if we look at Mr. Deichmann's diagram whaL we are looking
at. in the original shot is further north t.owards the school
building and people located up around the school building.
Yes? A. That would seem to be the case, yes.

Can you run on, please? If you do not mind, we can run
through this, but I think at this point you are at the west
fence, the west side interviewing people o-ver that low mesh
fence. Is that right? A. I believe so.

Could you just run on, please, to the interview, some of which
appears on the reports of the man in the white vest with
something over his shoulder. SLop there . ,Just run a biE of
that interview. I do not want to see that because f do not
think we are guite familiar with that man and his face. Could
you take that film out, please, and puE Ehe C3 rushes in? Can
you run it to a point two hours, 1-1 minutes, 50 seconds, which
I think is back from where we were -- back to where we were
towards the end of the tape. Just stop there. Can you run it
on, please, to the next bit? Stop there, please. That is the
gentleman with the white vest and the thing over hi-s shoulder?
A. It seems to ber |es.
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He is at. an upstairs window there in the community building?
fs that right? A. I can't say for sure where that is, no.

Did the community building have you filmed some of your
rushes, a.s we can see in a moment, in a sports hal1 or a
basket ball court? A" Yes"

A glrmnasium with racks with plywood f rames j-nside. Yes?
A. Yes.

Was that upstairs in the middle building? A. f cannot
recall precisely. It was inside one of those buildings which
had been used as some sort of sports centre.

But was it your understanding that the men you saw in the
field $rere free to move between the building and the bit
upstairs in the building? A. I think some of them had
access to the building, the back of the fie1d, but most of
them were left to their devices out in the field immediately
in front of it.

I am sorry, what do you mean by "had access to'r? A. We1I,
there were people sleeping and eating in the open field and
there were people sleeping inside the building at the back.
I'm not sure about the degree of access that people had to the
building at the back.

You do not know? A: No.

You do not know whether the men that we saw in the field could
move freely between that upstairs part of the community
building and out into the field and back again? You simply do
not know? A. I don't know. Most of them certainly felt
t.hey did not have t.hat freedom to move and regarded themselves
as prj-soners in that fie1d.

But, you see, w€ are going to see later on that. you
interviewed a number of people in that'gymnasium upstairs in
the building, including one guite long intetrview that we are
going to look at. I mean, presumably you -asked them, since
you consider it such an important point and have emphasised it
at this Erial: "WeII, are you free to move up and down the
stairs, out into the field?" That would have been something
you asked them? A. I would have asked them about the
conditions that they were living in. Those I spoke to about
where they slept and ate said they slept in the field which
was surrounded by the wire. I emphasised in my report iE was
a mixed camp- I'm not sure who had access to the building
behind the fie1d.

Let me tell
Lranscript,
detail. You

you what you say in your report. We can g,o to the
alLhough v/e are going to go to it later in some
say:

"Conditions at this camp were appalling. In 100 degree
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t heat hundreds of men were forced to eat and sleep outside
2 in a field behind barbed wire. "
3
4 Do you remember saying that on the report? A. I do.
5
5 Q But you are now saying that you do not know whether they were
7 forced to sleep outside in that field? A. No, I am saying
8 t.hat from my conversations on camera and off camera with those
9 people who were in the fie1d, they told me that they were

10 forced to sleep and eat outside in that field where there was
11 l-00 degree heat. That is as I reported it.
12
13 O I see. But you now accept that from this gentleman, who was
14 one of your j-nterviewees in the field, that he was able t.o
15 move into the building? A. For whatever reason he appears
16 to be in that building at the back of the fie1d.
t7
18 a Thank you. Could we go back to the Channel 4 rushes, please?
19 You can run on a bit to t.he end of this interview. We have
20 seen it a number of times. I will tell you when to stop if':,.:j 2L I can catch it. There he is leaning on Lhe low wire meih
22 fence. Correct? A. Yes"
23
24 O Stop there. I am sorry, You will have to go back, I am
25 afraid. We have got to catch the very beginning of it. That
26 is the one. Now, there we get. a better shot, do we not, of
27 what we were looking at just. a moment ago which i-s on
28 Mr. Dei-chmann's diagram t.he nort,h western corner of the area
29 wit.h barbed wire fencing, with the grass gTrowing up around t.he
30 bottom of the fence. Do you see that? A. Yes.
31-
32 a If you l-ook at that barbed wire fencing t.here which is running
33 from t.he pole in the middle, the dark pole, in the foreground
34 off to the right you can see that it sags down from the pole.
35 Do you see that? A. It is not. very distinct, oo.
36
37 O We]1, maybe aL some st.age do you want to get closer?
38 A. No. I mean, I ----

.:.,, . 39::' :''{o O r can see it from here. It is a light line sagging down left
4t to right. A. ft is not distinct to me.
42
43 MR. ,JUSTICE MORLAND: Are you indicating here?
44
45 MR. MILLAR: Running along from the pole left to right" There is
45 fencing
47
48 MR. ,JUSTICE MORLAND: L,ike t,his?
49
50 MR. MILLAR: That iS iT.
51
52 MR. 'JUSTICE MORLAND: You see where t.here are some concrete slabs.
53
54 MR. MILLAR: Yes.
55
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l- MR. ,IUSTfCE MORLAND: Going over, there seems to be a wire there.
2-
3 MR. MfLLAR: That is the wire, y€s, which is sagging down from the
4 po1e.
5
5 MR. ,fUSTICE MORLAND: It is not for me to give evidence, it is for
7 you to make what you can of these films but that is what
8 I seem to see. Yes.
9

10 MR. MILLAR: Now, t.hat is the inside of that north western part,
11 is it not, of the area surrounded by barbed wire and we can
1-2 see some of those grey builders' slabs there inside. Yes?
13 A. Yes, there are slabs therer 1res.
L4
15 O We can see the grass growing up around the corner on both
15 sides of the fencing? A. Yes.
L7
18 0 I think if you look in the background you can see a wheeL
19 barrow or bits of a wheelbarrow. We will see them from

.:,: 20 another side later on. The wheelbarrow that we sawt,",'r 21
22 MR. 'JUSTICE MORLAND: That is here, is it?
23
24 MR" MILLAR: Yes. (to the witness): If we run on I t.hink we can
25 get you on camera in location two in the camp. Stop there.
26 That is you, is it? A. Yes, that seems to be rne. yes.
27
28 0 Conducting intervj-ews over the lower mesh fence to the west.?
29 A. Yes.
30
31 MR. ,fUSTICE MORLAND: That is over here, is it?
32
33 MR. MILLAR: That i-s right. In the black flak jacket.
34
35 MR. ,JUSTICE MORLAND: Now if we look at this on Mr. Deichmann's
35 diagram, which I know you do not agree with, you are there
37 somewhere up at the poi-nt where his short arrow low fence
38 meet.s the fence, are you not? A Iittle bit further down from

,,.,'39 that actually? A. Yes, it is some way down, I think.'-.,.40
4L MR. MILLAR: Some way down. Perhaps about halfway down or just
42 below halfway down? A. Yes.
43
44 0 And there is a st.retch of mesh fence off to your right and
45 then the barbed wire fertce running off to the side that we
45 have just seen which was the fence behind which Mr. AIic was
47 filmed? A. Yes.
4B
49 a So you can see from where you are there the side of the barbed
50 wire fence from which Mr. AIic came and was filmed. yes?
51 A. It has gone.
52
53 a Can you run back a bitz Run the video back a bit, please.
54 You will see where it. is in relation there it is. Right?
55
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1 A. No, my screen has gone actua11y. (Aft.er a pause): Yes,
2 I am back with you.
3
4 O We can get your locaLion from the movement. of the camera here.
5 There is the barbed wire fence. The northern side of it is on
6 the poles running away to the t.op right hand corner?
7 A. Yes.
B

9 Q The camera moves to the right along the wi-re mesh fence. You
10 are outside the field. A bit further up from that north
11 western corner, the barbed wire fencing. Do you want. t.o just
L2 run it on? There You are? A. Yes.
13
t4 O Now, from that corner, that dark pole, there is continuously
l-5 wire mesh fencing. We can see that as t.he camera runs up, can
15 we not? A. Yes.
L7
18 O So however you have goL there, from location 1-, which was over
19 on the inside of the barbed wire fence near the north east
20 corner on Mr. Deichmann's diagram and the eastern road, you

.,.:2! have come past, have you not, that. corner of the barbed wire
22 fence? A. I have come around the corner, yes.

,2324 O You have come past. it in some way. You have not come through
25 the field where the men are because the 1ow wire mesh fence is
25 there all the way, is it not? So you have come past. it.
27 Where that area of ground is actually running up past it, you
28 have come past that, have you not? A. I have come around
29 t.he corner, yes.
30
3L O I am sorry, what are you saying is the corner? A. You
32 pointed out. the corner where the barbed wj-re meets the 1ow
33 wire fence.
34
35 a Yes. A. And I have come around to the l-ow wire fence.
35
37 O When you say t'come around'r, what do you mean? A. Walked
38 around the corner and down beside the low wire fence.

,., 39
''"40 MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: Through the high grass ahd weeds int.o the

4L cut area round the corner? A. Yes.
42
43 MR. MfLIJAR: You saw what I said, and the members of the jury will
44 see iu later on from closer up, of the sagging fence Lhere,
45 and I think we will see'it, ds I say, from the other side, so
45 how do you negotiaLe that to get out into the area that his
47 Lordship described? A. I have no recollection of
48 negotiating a fence along that side of what you call the
49 enclosure.
50
51 O Can I just get this clear? Are you saying there is not a
52 barbed wire fence there? A. There may be the remnants of
53 a barbed wire fence there but there was certainly not a wire
54 fence obst.ructing our ability to walk down and around the
55 corner to the Iow wire fence.
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a So you come from the north east corner looking at
Mr. Deichmann's diagram, along the inside of the barbed wire
fence where t.he interviews were conducted to the north west
corner, and to get to your locat.ion next to the l-ow fence just
explain this to me, you somehow negotiate your way through
t.hat sectj-on there t.hat we can see? Is that right?
A. I did, and there is clearly sort of grass and debris and
whatever there, but I have no recollection of having to
negotiate a barbed wire fence in order to get down and around
that corner. I think it was pretty straightforward to go
round that corner.

O WeII, it is a matter for the jury. They will have an
opportunity to look at the shot at some stage no doubt if they
want to, that we have just looked at, and his Lordship got up
and pointed out on the television, and they will see what they
will see. You see, I am putting it to you that visible on
that shot on the video is exactly the same type of fence
arrangement that we have seen all around this area, which is a
Iow mesh fence up to about head height or neck height, with
strands of barbed wire running across on top of it, except
that they are sagging at this point in the fence. You do not
agree with that? A. No. I mean, there may have been the
remnanEs of a fence there but there was I have no
recollection of having a difficult task of in fact it was
pretty straight.forward to walk from the barbed wire around the
corner to where the 1ow wire is.

MR. ,}USTfCE MORLAND: Are you putting as chicken wire here and
then barbed wire possibly sagging here? But are you saying
there is chicken wire in that corner running effectively north
south?

MR. MILLAR: Yes. What there is, we s?y, all the way round is the
same type of fencing that we saw right back at the beginning
at the southern part of the compound where the camera gave us
a close-up. It is sort of slightly rusty hexagonal fencing
underneath with two strands of wire-

MR. iIUSTICE MORTAND: You say that is all roudd what you call the
enclosed area?

MR. MILLAR: Yes.

MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: The four sides of it?
I"IR. MILLAR: Yes, around the barn. (To the witness): Now, you

say there may have been some barbed wire there?
A. I cannot recaI1. What I am saying is I have no difficulty
wafking from the barbed wire around the corner to where t,he
low fence is. My concentration was on those people in the
field. They were E.he people who I wanted to film and what
I wanted to talk to. Frank1y, I didn't. real}y take much
not.ice of whether there was a barbed wire on the far side or
the extent of what might have been the remnants of barbed wire
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on this near side. r certainly had no difficulty walking from
where we had been filming beside the barbed wire down and
around the corner to the low chicken wire which formed this
side of the pen.

As I say, we will see that section of fencing later on in your
rushes from the other side, because one of the things your
cameraman does is he takes a long shot, zooms in on the man in
the enclosure at the south, across it, as we ean see the wire
on other side. But are you sure, I just want to check this,
that you did not come out of, that enclosure to geL to the 1ow
fence on the west in t.he same way that you went into it?
A. Most certainly

One of those gaps down by the transformer?
certainly not

A. Most

a

a

You are certain about that? A. Absolutely certain.
That is one of the things you are certain about?
A. Absolutely certain.

So you have g,one in through a gap in the barbed wire fence
next to the transformer. You have accepted t.hat. You have
gone up to the north east corner, as we have seen, of some
barbed wire fencing past the gate on the right. where the track
comes in from the road and yor.r have moved all the way along
the inside of the barbed wire fence to get. out of it, to Eet.up t.he west side of the low mesh fence. That is what you say
was happening? A. That. seems to have been my movements,
although f would not share your definiti-ons in the sense t.hat
my concentration at that time was not on what type of wire
I was passing, what type of buildings I was passing. It was
to get down to where I saw those many, many people imprisoned
in the fie1d. That was my focus.

But do you not ask yourself as an experienced reporter and
news gather, particularly on an assignment like this, the
backdrop to which is allegations of concentration camps and
possible mistreatment in camps 'tHere I find myself with a
1ot of men behind a barbed wire fence of the sort that we have
seen in conditions that seem to me pretty inhumaner. Did you
not ask yourself at any stage: 'rIs this barbed wire fence
running round the camp and if it is not, what is it here for?',
A. Of course I did. The barbed wire fence was part of, as
I made clear in my report, a feneed compound and behind the
barbed wire and within that compound were men in t.erribre
physical state being kept against their wi11.

Yes, it is part of but it is an entirely different form of
fencing, is it not? It is one that takes on great
significance in your report, ds we are going to see, because
you refer to barbed wire fencing and indeed you finished your
report with the shot back and the misty shot through some
barbed wire fencing. Agreed? A. That was a very
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appropriate shot. to end the report about prisons and
inhumanity.

So barbed wire in your report, os you have put it out, is
significant, is it not? A. It is significant that there
are prisoners being kept behind barbed wj-re and that barbed
wire forms part of a compound within which are men who have
clearly been treaLed in an abysmal way and are clearly
imprisoned, frightened and regard themselves as being in
prison. That was whaL I focused on. That j-s what I regarded
as importanL, not which bit. of wire starts where or what type
of wire starts where.

I see. So at no stage while you are going round the field in
which the men are do you ask yourself that question: "What is
this barbed wire part. of? What is it here for? Why are t.he
two sides of the fencing entirely different?'t A. Barbed
wire that we focused on that we went to was clearly there as
part of a compound, a prison for these men. Frankly, it did
not seem to me particularly relevant what that barbed wire
mi-ght have been before the men were imprisoned in that field.

It is pretty relevant, is it not, Mr. Williams, if it is part
of a compound surrounding you and you take a film shot of the
men in the field, outside the area surrounded by the barbed
wire and t.hen put. that on a film report as a symbol of their
encagement. It must. be relevant, must it not?
A. I reject that contention that it is part of an enclosure
surrounding me.

WeII, it is pretty apparent from what we have been through
this morning that that is the case, is it not., Mr. Williams?
A. Once upon it a time it might have been some sort of
enclosure. Frankly, I was not aware of it at the time, and
subsequently I was not aware of the existence of what you call
an enclosure. As far as I could see and as far as my focus
wenL, it was on what that stretch of barbed wj-re was being
used for now.

Can we run the film on, please? More shot-s, I think, of the
western mesh fence. Stop there: That is the type of fencing
Lhat we have got on the wesEern side, is it not? I am afraid
I have rather inelegantly described it as criss-cross fencing.
A. Yes.

Rather than the sort of rusty six-sid.ed fencing that we saw in
the southern part of the compound. Yes? A. Yes.

And it is newer, is it not? A.
yes -

It appears to be newer,

Can you just run it on, please? Now, are you interviewing him
out of the fence? A. I think this is Mr. Braddel
interviewing in Russian.
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1 O I see. fs that the community building in the background?
2 A. I believe so, yes.
3
4 O I think it is the corner. The canopy would be round that
5 corner. Can you just pause there? We are further up along
5 t.he west side here. If we look on the p1an, we are looking at
7 an angle at t.he southern side of the community building. Yes?
B A. (No audible reply) .

9
10 O Yes? A. I am sorrY?
11
L2 O Where are you at. that point.? A. It.'s difficult to locat.e
13 precisely because it is too tight a shot.
14
l-5 O Can you run it on and you may be able to move it forward
L6 swiftly, to some shots of men in areas where there is no
17 fencing at all. Stop there. Now, where is that?
18 A. I believe it is round the ot.her side of the community
79 building.

.20
,:) 2L O If we look on the diagram by Mr. Deichmann, his plan, there is

22 a section at the top left, shelters, an open area. Is that
23 where you are talking about? A. I could not say for
24 sure.
25
26 O Did you get up to that area or is this one of the ones that
27 your cameraman went to? A. I can'L recall getting to this
28 area. I may well st.ill have been conducting interviews.
29
30 O Can you run the film on a bit. at normal speed, please. Now
31 stop there. The area there does not seem to have any fencing,
32 it. is at the side of the building and there are men there.
33 Where is that? A. I beli-eve this is over behind t.he
34 community building, the white building that. we referred to.
35
35 O The one in the middle? A. Yes.
37
38 O That is at the back of that building? A. Yes.

,,'1,39':';::'4o O There does not appear to be any fencing at- all there?
4L A. There does not appear to be, no.
42
43 a Did you go round the back of the building? A. I did.
44 Whether f was with the cameraman when this was shot I cannot
45 recall
46
47 a We will run it on a bit. (Pause) If you just stop there,
48 there are men there walking around apparently wit,h no fencing
49 at all between your cameraman. Where is that?
50 A. I cannot recal1 precisely at which point this was.
51 I guess again it would have been part of the area behind the
52 community building.
53
54 A Run it on please to the shots of the inside of the building.
55 (Pause) Can you just stop it there. Those men, again no
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fence around them. Which building is that? A. I cannot
recall precisely which building this j-s. Again I think it
would have been the other side of the community building.

MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: They seem to be pretty well- fed round t.his
picture. A. Yes.

MR. MILTAR: Can you run it on please t.o the shots inside the
community building? (pause) Stop there. Where are we
filming there? A. I believe this is inside the community
building or inside one of those buildings.

a On the fTN rushes I do not want to take you to them --
there is a sequence that you are probably familiar with, with
some men wal-king up some stairs into what appears t.o be a
sleeping area. Is this upstairs, t.his one? A. I cannot
recall whether this was upstairs or downstairs

a Run it on then, dt normal pace. (Pause) This is an area
where the men sIeep, is it? A. ft appears to be where
some men s1eep, yes.

a Pause there. This is the gentleman you interviewed at some
Iengt.h inside this building. A. Yes.

O Do you remember I asked you about t.his earlier on? I think
you have accepted you did not ask him whether he had free
access to this building, in and out. of the field outside?
A. No, but I asked him I think as a final guestion whether he
thought he could leave and I believe he said that he had no
idea when he might be able t.o do that. ,

a Can you play a normal speed? (Pause) Did you spend a while
in this area? A. I cannot recall preciseJ-y how long we
were in t.his area, buL as I made clear in my report, this was
a mixed camp and this is where we encountered more genuine
refugees.

a Yes. You make a point in your film report that you say these
are more genuine refugees. Can you just fause there on the
film? I wonder how in making that commenE you distinguished
between t.he men in t.he field and these men you describe as
more genuine refugees? A. Because the men in the fie1d,
many of t.hem had been transported that day or very recently
from other camps, Kheratam or Omarska, and bore the physical
scars of the treatment they had received there. Others had
been kept in the field longer. They were the ones who were
most frightened. They were the ones with the stories of
brutality and ill-treatment. There were other people at
Trnopolje, most of those staying in this building and camped
at the back of the building, who were here because they had
nowhere else to go. Many of them had been driven out of their
homes as part of the wave of ethnic cleansing that. was then
sweeping across that part of Bosnia.
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O I have got that point. but we have seen that the man with the
white vest with a thing over his shoulder whom you did
interview and....the facts included in your programme as an
example of somebody who was giving you an interview about the
bad time he had previously. We have seen he is up at the
window inside at one stage. Correct? A. I do not know
precisely where he is. Neither do I know precisely how he got
t.here

a No. A. That is the first time f have seen

0

o

0

These men, and there are obviously guite a 1ot
sleeping in there, You did not intervj-ew all of
out ttrelr case hist6ries obviously? A. No.

that picture.

of them
them to find

a position to draw a distinction between the
hS:re as genuine refugees and all of Lhose men

your report on some basis that you cannoE
A. I was able to make that distinction,

a convenient. moment, fry Lord.

Yes, thank you. 2 o'clock.
(Ad'ioUrned for a short time)

a

You could not have done. A. No, w€ talked to a lot of
people. I believe that by this time as well we had acquired
some local Serb minders who were taking a far closer interest
in what we were saying and who we were talking to and it
became fairly difficult to get frank remarks from the people
we were talking to.'

I am just wondering, taking you back to your answer a momenL
d9o, how are you able to dist.inguish, put into a different
category, all of these men who sleep ouL here and aI1 of those
men in the field? It is impossible, is iL not? A. It was
pretty clear on the day. You had very, very frightened men
bearing the scars of physical i11-treatment. At the back of
the camp you had people in a rather better physical state,
people who were able Lo te11 us that. they were there because
they had been driven from their homes or there had been
fighting in the vicinity of their homes, technically refugees
although too frightened to step beyond the camp.

The jury will decide. They have seen plenty of shots of the
men in Lhe fi-eld and we have just looked at a 1ot of them this
morning, but your evidence j-s that they were consistently and
identifiably people who had suffered abuse and were terrified?
A. I could not say thaE every one of them had. That was the
impression I had from the conversations f -was able to have
around the compound.

O And you felt in
men who slept up
in the field in
guite specify?
yes.

MR. MILLAR: Is that

MR. ,fUSTICE MORLAND:
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